
SELECT BOARD MEETING AGENDA* 
Donn B. Griffin Room, Town Hall 

732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 
Regular Meeting 6:00 P.M. 
Monday, February 12, 2024 

 
Remote Participation Optional: 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://meet.goto.com/443620061 

You can also dial in using your phone. 
Access Code: 443-620-061 

United States: +1 (571) 317-3122 
 

*As required by Open Meeting Law, you are hereby informed that the Town will be video and audio taping as 
well as live broadcasting this public meeting.  In addition, anyone in the audience who plans to video or audio 

tape this meeting must notify the Chairman prior to the start of the meeting. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Designate Jennifer Harrington as the 2024 Municipal Animal Control Officer 
B. Approve Select Board Meeting Minutes for February 5, 2024 

 
V. PUBLIC HEARINGS & PRESENTATIONS 

A. Public Hearing - Approve a Stormwater Permit application for a seven (7) lot subdivision plan 
“Wildlife Circle” located off of Littlefield Pond Road, Assessors Map 65, Parcel R2-2/0 

B. Public Hearing - Discussion and possible vote to opt out of early Voting by Mail for the Special 
Town Election to be held on April 9, 2024 

C. Approve the Cranberry Valley Golf Course rates & fees adjustments as recommended by the Golf 
Director; Continued from January 29, 2024 

D. Presentation by Amanda Converse, Love Live Local, Inc. on the importance of small business to 
Cape Cod & the local economy  

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approve the Employment Agreement between Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator, and the 
Town of Harwich  

B. Presentation and discussion on Fiscal Year 2025 Departmental Operating Budgets 
C. Discussion on potential draft Articles for the 2024 Annual Town Meeting to be held Monday, 

May 6, 2024 
D. Discussion on schedule for the March 2, 2024, Budget Meeting 
E. Vote to approve and sign the Presidential Preference Primary Election Warrant to be held March 5, 

2024 
F. Discussion on Cell Tower revenue 
G. Approve a 2024 Annual Common Victuallers license renewal – Shooting Star Realty d/b/a 

Buca’s Tuscan Roadhouse, 4 Depot Road 
H. Vote to approve the use of Chapter 90 funds for the design and reconstruction of the Route 

39/Chatham Road intersection. 
 
VII. CONTRACTS 

A. Vote to approve a contract with GHD in the amount of $4,332,000 for construction phase services in 
relation to the Phase 3 wastewater project 

B. Vote to approve a contract with Hub Technical Services, LLC in the amount of $196,231.26 for 
network upgrades. 

C. Approve the Fiscal Year 2024 Regional Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application 
 

VIII. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
IX. SELECT BOARD’S MEMBER REPORT 
 
X. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
*Per the Attorney General’s Office: The Select Board may hold an open session for topics not reasonably 
anticipated by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting following “New Business.” If you are deaf or hard 
of hearing or a person with a disability who requires an accommodation contact the Selectmen’s Office at 508-
430-7513. 
 
Authorized Posting Officer: Posted by: ________________________ 
 Town Clerk 
   Date:  
Danielle Freiner, Executive Assistant  February 8, 2024 

https://meet.goto.com/443620061
tel:+15713173122,,443620061


CONSENT AGENDA  



February 5,2024 

Dear Animal Control Supervisor or Animal Control Officer, 

Animal Control Officer Designations were due back by February 1, 2024. According to our records, we 
have not yet received designations for your municipality. Please review the following information and 
submit any changes as soon as possible. 

In accordance with Massachusetts General Law, Chapter 140, Section 151, the mayor of each city and the 
board of selectmen of each town shall annually designate an animal control officer (“ACO”), who may be a police 
officer or constable. The mayor or board of selectmen shall immediately submit to the commissioner of the 
Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources (“Department”) the names, addresses and dates of hire of 
such animal control officer(s). 

The Department is required under MGL Chapter 140, section 151A to inspect the facilities that municipalities use 
to hold stray dogs and other animals that come into the possession of the ACO. Municipal animal holding 
locations must be reported to the Massachusetts Department of Agricultural Resources. 

Below you will find prepopulated information from our current ACO database. To confirm, add, or to make 
changes to your ACO designations please visit  Municipal Animal Control Officer Designation 2024 | Mass.gov
Please note, if you prefer this email can be printed out and updated forms can be uploaded into the portal 
above, or emailed to sheri.gustafson@mass.gov

Should an ACO leave his or her position mid-year, please notify the Department immediately. Any of the 
required information pertaining to any new hire employed during the year should be submitted on a new 
designation form immediately upon their hiring.  

If you have any questions, please contact sheri.gustafson@mass.gov

Sincerely,Animal Holding Information 

Michael Cahill, Director  
Division of Animal Health, 
MA Dept. of Agricultural Resources 



MINUTES 
SELECT BOARD MEETING 

DONN B. GRIFFIN ROOM, TOWN HALL 
732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 

EXECUTIVE SESSION - 5:00 PM 
REGULAR MEETING - 6:00 PM 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2024  

MEMBERS PARTICIPATING:  Julie Kavanagh, Chair, Michael MacAskill, Vice Chair, Jeff 
Handler, Clerk and Don Howell 

ALSO PARTICIPATING:  Joseph Powers, Town Administrator  

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Ms. Kavanagh called the meeting of the Harwich Select Board to order at 5:00PM noting that 
they would be going into Executive Session and returning to the Regular Meeting no earlier than 
6:00PM.   

Mr. Handler moved for the Select Board to enter into Executive Session as presented, seconded 
by Mr. MacAskill.   

Vote 4:0 in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

II. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 A. Pursuant to MGL c. 30A §21(a)(7) to comply with, or act under the authority of, any   
 general or special law or federal grant-in-aid requirements, the Open Meeting Law, MGL   
 c. 30A §§ 22(f), (g) to review, approve and or discuss the possible release of executive   
 session meeting minutes dated January 2, 2024; January 16, 2024; January 22, 2024 
 B. Pursuant to G.L. c. 30A, sec. 21(a)(2) to conduct strategy sessions in preparation for   
 negotiations with non-union personnel and to conduct contract negotiations with non-  
 union personnel: Town  Administrator 

Ms. Kavanagh called the Select Board meeting back to order at 6:00PM reporting that the Board 
did take action on item A. which was a vote to approve and not release without Town Counsel 
approval.  Action and discussion was taken on item B. and the Board will vote on that item on 
February 12, 2024. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

February 5, 2024



Ms. Kavanagh invited all attendees to join in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 A. Update from Senator Julian Cyr (This item was taken out of order) 

Carrie Schoener, Health Director was present gave an update on the recent sewer extension 
approval, noting future connection dates.  She also noted the Board of Health’s internal policy 
for connection assistance encouraging anyone interested in assistance and extensions to call the 
Health Department.  

Ashley Symington, Director of Youth and Family Services was present and gave updates and 
details on new programs and registration information.   

Mr. Howell spoke about the organization, Girl Power, expressed his support and encouraged 
involvement.  

Carolyn Carey, Community Center Director was present and noted the 24th anniversary of the 
opening of the Community Center. She gave an update and details on programs and  upcoming 
events at the Community Center.  All the information is on the Community Center’s website. 

Mr. Handler noted that the first stop on the 2024 Listening Tour will be Restaurant, Hospitality 
and Bar.  He and Cindy Williams, Director of the Chamber of Commerce will be at the 
Community Center on February 15th from 5:30PM to 7:30PM in Room 3.  He also noted a 
virtual public meeting to be held by the Cape Cod Commission on the Low Lying Roads Project 
and gave details.  

V. CONSENT AGENDA  (Taken out of order.) 
 A. Approve the following appointments for the Harwich Police Department, as    
 recommended by the Police Chief: 
      1. Scott McFarland, Student Officer, effective February 19, 2024 
      2. Rachid Arnick, Student Officer, effective February 19, 2024 
      3. De’Andre Bennett, Student Officer, effective February 19, 2024 
      4. Jake Fugate, Student Officer, effective February 19, 2024 
      5. Nora Buckley Dyer, Emergency Telecommunications Dispatcher, effective    
      February 6, 2024 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the appointments to the Harwich Police Department as presented, 
seconded by Mr. MacAskill. 

Kevin Considine, Deputy Police Chief was present and gave an update on the Department’s 
current vacancy status. He also noted that the candidates have completed all the requirements 
necessary to attend the Plymouth Police Academy. Deputy Chief Considine gave an overview 

February 5, 2024



and timeline of  the process the officers will go through including Field Training. He introduced 
and gave a brief background of each candidate individually. 

Vote:  4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

Ms. Kavanagh welcomed all the candidates and all present expressed their congratulations  with 
applause.   

 B. Approve the following committee recommendations from the Select Board Interview   
 Committee: 
      1. Victoria Brown, Full member, Cultural Council Committee, term to expire June 30,   
      2024 
      2. Anthony Dimauro, Full member, Harwich Housing Committee, term to expire June   
      30, 2024 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the committee recommendations as presented, seconded by Mr. 
Howell.   

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

 C. Approve a 100th Birthday proclamation for Mary Ratto Barron 

Mr. Handler moved to approve a 100th Birthday proclamation for Mary Ratto Barron, seconded 
by Mr. MacAskill.   

Vote:  4:0 in favor.  Motion carried. 

 D. Approve Select Board Meeting Minutes: 
      1. January 16, 2024 
      2. January 22, 2024 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the Meeting Minutes as presented, seconded by Mr. MacAskill. 

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 
 A. Approve the Cranberry Valley Golf Course rates & fees adjustments as recommended   
 by the Golf Director; Continued from January 29, 2024 

Ms. Kavanagh noted that this agenda item is being continued to next week.  

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

February 5, 2024



 A. Discussion on appointment of Police Chief; Consideration of Deputy Police Chief   
 Kevin M. Considine; Votes may be taken 

Ms. Kavanagh noted that Chief Guillemette will be retiring and has been a great asset to the 
Town of Harwich.  Deputy Chief Considine was before the Select Board for their consideration 
as Chief of Police.  

Deputy Chief Considine addressed the Select Board, thanking them for the opportunity and gave 
a description of his career with the Harwich Police Department.  

Board members each expressed their support for Kevin Considine as the next Harwich Police 
Chief.   

Mr. Howell moved to promote Kevin Considine to Chief subject to a successful completion of 
negotiations with the Select Board, seconded by Ms. Kavanagh.   

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

Members of the Harwich Police Department and Deputy Chief Considine’s family were present 
to show their support.   

Deputy Chief Considine recognized the officers who were present and expressed his appreciation 
for them and their support.  He also introduced his family members and expressed his gratitude 
to them for their support. 

 B. Town Administrator to present the Fiscal Year 2025 budget and budget message 

Joseph Powers, Town Administrator gave a presentation on the Fiscal Year 2025 budget and 
budget message.  He noted that the Budget Report is in the packet.  He recommended that they 
proceed with caution and deliberate action. He noted the timeline moving forward in the budget 
process in accordance with the Charter. He continued with Revenue(Sources) pointing out 
specific items and giving details. 

Mr. Howell asked for a projection and information on the Rooms Taxes.   

Mr. Powers responded with the answers based on the information they have at this time.  

Mr. Powers continued with Expenses/Uses pointing out specific items and giving details. He 
moved on to the Current Financial Outlook noting specifics and  summarized noting the positive 
trend in State Aide.  

February 5, 2024



In response to a question from Mr. MacAskill, Mr. Powers noted service enhancements for 
several departments and clarified the definition of the term “onboarding”.  Questions that will be 
asked and issues that will be discussed at the March 4th meeting were noted.  

(Julian Cyr is now present to offer an update as listed under Public Comments/Announcements) 

Senator Cyr gave an update on what has been accomplished on Beacon Hill  specifically noting 
the Tax Relief Package, Wastewater Funds, the State Budget and local aide. Mr.  Cyr emphasized 
that Housing is his priority and also a priority for the Governor, noting what is being done or 
proposed towards that effort including a Local Option Transfer Fee.   He acknowledged Sarah 
Peak for her service, especially for the Cape and Islands.  

Mr. Howell expressed concerns about funding for Wastewater and the need for help from Senator 
Cyr on Beacon Hill.  

Mr. Cyr responded with an overview of what he projects for the future and what he  intends to do 
going forward.  He acknowledged the gap between the cost of projects and the available funds.  

Board members expressed their thanks to Mr. Cyr for attending and for the information.   

Stan Pestuzac of Harwich was present and commented on the septic benefit, noting why he 
would not qualify. 

Mr. Cyr responded to Mr. Pestuzac’s concerns noting that the Governor has filed for a 
clarification of  “retroactive”.  In closing he asked the Select Board to communicate the Town’s 
needs to him. He will share information that other towns are using for the Select Board  to 
consider as a template for Home Rules.  

 C. Discussion on Wastewater Management Plan Phase three 

Dan Pelletier, Water/Wastewater Superintendent was present with Jeff Gregg,  Project Manager 
from GHD.  Together with Mr. Powers, they gave a presentation on  Phase 3 of the Watershed 
Management Plan.  They had a slide show with maps of the sewer service and parcels, sewer 
service  types, sewer sheds and add alternates. The map was described in detail explaining 
options and possible service connections. Also included was a graph with costs and estimates. 
Areas identified were noted and descriptions given of the possible systems to be used in each. 
Mr. Pelletier mentioned cost reductions on specific items since previous estimates were done. 
Mr. Gregg gave an overview of the timeline for contract work moving forward. Information was 
given about the  topics that will be discussed at the Public Meeting on Phase 3 which will be held 
on February 13th at the Harwich Community Center.  Mr. Pelletier showed an interactive  map 
with information which will be available on the Town’s website as well as the Water 
Department’s website.  

February 5, 2024



 D. Vote to designate In Person Early Voting Hours and Location for the 2024 Presidential   
 Primary Election 

Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk was present and explained the State’s voting requirements. She 
requested that the Board set the early In Person Voting Hours and the location for the March 5th 
Presidential Primaries and gave her recommendations. 

Mr. Handler moved to accept the  In Person Early Voting Hours recommended by the Town 
Clerk as presented in the packet: Saturday, February 24, 2024, 10:00AM to 4:00PM, no hours on 
Sunday, February 25th and Monday through Friday, February 26th to March 1, 2024, 8:30AM to 
4:00PM at Town Hall, seconded by Mr. MacAskill. 

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried. 

 E. Discussion on proposed River Herring Harvest; Votes may be taken 

Brad Chase of the State Division of Marine Fisheries and Don Yannozzi, Director of Natural 
Resources and Assistant Harbor Master were present. Mr. Chase gave an update on the River 
Herring numbers which has increased substantially.  He suggested that the Board discuss the 
possibility of the Town establishing a Herring Commission for help with future issues regarding 
harvests and runs. Mr. Yannozzi expressed his support for having a Commission, giving his 
reasons and noting the benefits.  He also commented that the herring runs are not just a Harwich 
concern and expressed the need for neighboring towns to work together for the  execution of a 
plan for a strong harvest.  

Mr. MacAskill suggested a harvest at theWest Reservoir only, commenting on how it has been 
handled in the past. He encouraged Mr. Yannozzi to work with other communities and the Board 
to work on organizing volunteers.  

Mr. Chase suggested a one day opening/celebration,  considering the time frame involved for 
permitting, etc.  

Mr. Howell gave a brief history of the Harwich’s involvement with the herring runs and the 
inevitability of opening runs in the future.  He also commented that he is not in favor of a 
Commission and stated his reasons.  

Mr. Chase suggested that the Commission be an advisory Commission, not one with authority.  

Ms. Kavanagh expressed concerns about having a celebration without a permitting system in 
place. 

Mr. Handler also expressed concerns about moving forward with a one day celebration. 

February 5, 2024



Mr. Yannozzi suggested that there be another discussion in a year’s time with the focus and goal 
on having a run next spring.  

Mr. Chase will provide a summary of what other towns have regarding an advisory commission. 

Raymond Kane, Jr., Chair of the State Marine Fisheries Commission was present  
and noted that the discussion is for opening one run.  He noted State Laws, gave a brief history 
and commented that he feels it is time to give the public assess to one herring run.  He 
encouraged the Board to move forward towards opening next year.  

An unidentified man suggested that the herring be allowed to spawn before they are taken.  

 F. Approve the G.L.c. 268A, Section 23(b)(3) Disclosure of Appearance of Conflict of   
 Interest for Ann C. Tucker, Planning Board 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the G.L.c. 268A, Section 23(b)(3) Disclosure of Appearance of 
Conflict of Interest for Ann C. Tucker, Planning Board, seconded by Mr. Howell.   

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

 G. Discussion on the request for a liaison to the Barnstable County Human Rights   
 Advisors Commission; Votes may be taken 

Mr. Kavanagh explained that the request had been sent to her, the Commission is looking for a 
Harwich citizen to participate.  She noted that if anyone is interested in this role, the description 
can be found in the packet and  will be posted on the website.  

 Mr. Powers will follow up on having that information posted. 

 H. Vote to direct the Real Estate and Open Space Committee to evaluate 172, 178 and   
 246 Queen Anne Road for possible disposition 

Mr. Handler moved to approve to direct the Real Estate and Open Space Committee to evaluate 
172, 178 and 246 Queen Anne Road for the purpose of  possible disposition by sale, seconded by 
Mr. Howell. 

Mr. MacAskill asked Mr. Powers to confirm next steps once Real Estate and Open Spaces 
returns their recommendations.  

Mr. Powers responded with an answer noting how this situation differs from other properties that 
had been sold in the past.  

February 5, 2024



Mr. Howell suggested that it would be beneficial to put the Request for Proposal (RFP) out and 
then go to Town Meeting with specifics.  

Mr. Kavanagh emphasized that the Board has to know what Legal Counsel says they are allowed 
to do with the properties.  

Mr. MacAskill commented that he feels they should go to Town Meeting with a recommendation 
from Real Estate and Open Spaces and a vote of the Select Board to sell those properties. He 
proposed that as this goes forward, the money go into an account to continue to work on the 7 
million dollars plus of tax problems.   

Mr. Powers confirmed that the reference to Real Estate and Open Spaces is for disposition by 
sale.  

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 A. Discussion on land of low value 

Ms. Kavanagh gave an overview of conversations  regarding the topic of land of low value.  
There is information in the packet regarding the option of having an auction.  

Mr. Howell noted that the Select Board had previously voted to move forward on this issue.  

Ms. Kavanagh explained why this item has been brought back for discussion.  

Mr. MacAskill noted  next steps and reasons why he would like to  move forward.  

Mr. Handler moved to act as the previous Board directed to have the Town Administrator be the 
point person to move this project forward for the purpose of sale, seconded by Mr. Howell. 

Mr. Powers clarified the wording of the previous vote which did not direct the Town 
Administrator to be the point person.  

The motion was amended as follows:  Mr. Handler moved to reaffirm a third auction on the land 
of low value and to appoint the Town Administrator to be the point person, seconded by Mr. 
Howell.  

Vote 3:1 in favor with Ms. Kavanagh voting no.  Motion carried.  

February 5, 2024



 B. Discussion on the revised job description for the Assistant Town Administrator; Votes   
 may be taken 

Ms Kavanagh noted that the packet includes the current Assistant Town Administrator’s job 
description with Human Resources (HR) included and then also with HR removed.   

Mr. Powers noted that there are two scenarios, one not changing anything and the other 
devolving the HR role.  

Mr. MacAskill asked for next steps to review the Assistant Town Administrator’s compensation 
schedule for the job that she is doing now.  

Mr. Powers suggested having a conversation next week regarding the personnel By-law Class 
and Como Tables.  

Mr. Howell commented  that he does to feel that taking that one function out would change the 
pay scale for the Assistant TownAdministrator (ATA). 

Mr. MacAskill requested that the conversation on compensation be continued for two weeks so 
that he can be present.  He also inquired about the process for  procurements and of having 
another person trained for procurement to build a procurement team.   

Mr. Powers responded that he and Ms. Eldredge, ATA have discussed working with Department 
Heads and supporting them through the procurement process. He supports allowing the 
Department Heads to go to the classes and obtain the certification for procurement.  He described 
the process,  cost and commitment of continuing  education to become certified for procurement.  

 C. Discussion on the By-Law Charter Review Committee charge; Votes may be taken 

Mr. Handler noted one concern which he had previously noted, specific wording under Scope 
and Responsibility that he felt should be removed.  

Linda Cebula of the Charter Review Committee was present and expressed that the Committee 
feels that the wording in question should remain in the Charge and explained the reasons.  She 
requested that the wording remain.  

Discussion followed regarding the wording. After discussion it was agreed to remove the 
wording discussed. 

Mr. MacAskill asked for clarification on wording in the Charter. 

Ms. Cebula explained and clarified the meaning of the wording. 

February 5, 2024



Mr. MacAskill moved to strike “including the By-law Charter Review Committee’s 
recommendations” but leave the first sentence in.   

Mr. Howell moved to accept the By-Law Charter Review Committee charge with the deletion of 
the two sections that Mr. MacAskill referenced, seconded by Mr. Handler. 

Mr. MacAskill outlined the two sections  for the public as follows: Under “shall submit a report 
to Town Meeting concerning any proposed amendments and/or revisions to the Charter and/or 
By-Laws. (stop there)  The other section to be struck- “the Select Board shall submit all such 
Articles to the By-Law Charter Review Committee no later than 14 days after the deadline for 
submission of our Articles.    

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

Ms. Cebula will make those changes and send the revised Charter to the Chair.  

 D. Review of the ongoing project list as provided by the Assistant Town Administrator 

Mr. Powers reviewed the list before the Board noting minor changes made since the memo had 
been generated. 

Jamie Goodwin of the Harwich Channel clarified the update on the new camera. 

Mr. Powers continued through the list noting specific items.   

Mr. MacAskill asked when the Board will review re-appropriation of funds. He asked for 
additional explanation on when projects will be initiated or when the funds will be returned. 

Mr. Powers responded that they are presently reviewing those numbers.  The age of the proposed 
projects will be considered in the rebalancing. He also noted related projects. 

Mr. MacAskill requested an update on the Willow Street project. 

Mr. Powers responded that Katie Cline, Legal Counsel had evaluated the next step.  They are 
reaching out to the original surveyor to ask her questions.  He believes that the answers are 
straight forward and the process is done but they are waiting to have that conversation.  He 
explained that it is a legal matter, not a procurement issue.  

Mr. MacAskill questioned the Fund, Land Research for assessing purposes and asked for 
clarification on how the money was spent by the company they hired to do the research.  He 
would like to verify that none of that money was used for the second contract for tax rate 
certificate.  

February 5, 2024



Mr. Handler asked about the next steps  on By-Law Charter analysis which  Ms. Kavanagh 
answered with an update. He also asked if there is an active Request for Proposal (RFP) on the 
Sand Pond Restroom Project. 

Mr. Powers responded and explained next steps going forward with another RFP if there is 
interest in the project.   

Ms. Kavanagh asked about the money noted for the Americans Disability Act (ADA) sidewalks 
in Harwich Center.   

Mr. Powers responded with the update and explanation on that project.   

IX. CONTRACTS 
 A. Vote to approve a contract with GHD in the amount of $4,332,000 for construction   
 phase services in relation to the Phase 3 wastewater project 

Mr. Powers explained the benefit to approving this contract. 

Mr. Handler moved to approve the contract with GHD as presented, seconded by Mr. Howell. 

Mr. MacAskill commented that it is no reflection on GHD but he will vote no because the 
contract is incomplete.  It is without a signature from the Finance Director showing approved 
funds and a procurement check list.  

Mr. Powers responded that Mr. Pelletier informed him that as of 5:30PM this date, they do have 
the Appropriation.   

Mr. MacAskill  emphasized that he is not in any way against this contract, but it is not complete.  

Mr. Howell agreed and suggested that they delay voting on this contract.  

Mr. Handler withdrew his motion. Mr. Howell withdrew his second.  

X. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

Mr. Powers reported that Natasha Lyon, the new Executive Assistant to the Town Administrator 
will begin next Monday.  He also announced the contract with Duffy Health Center.   

XI. SELECT BOARD’S MEMBER REPORT 

Mr. MacAskill asked  the Town Administrate to pass along to Mr. Pelletier that he is very happy 
with GHD. Mr. MacAskill   requested that the Board be given an updated tax lien list on 11 x 17 
paper with large font. He also requested that an update 204 Sisson Road including programs and 

February 5, 2024



procurement be on a future agenda.  He would also like to agenda the Pickle Ball rates at 204 
Sisson Road. 

XII. CORRESPONDENCE 

None  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Howell moved to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Handler. 

Vote 4:0 in favor.  Motion carried.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Judi Moldstad 
Board Secretary  

February 5, 2024



PUBLIC HEARINGS 

& 

PRESENTATIONS  





TOWN OF HARWICH 
SELECT BOARD 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Vote by Mail for the Special Town Election to be held April 9, 2024 

The Harwich Select Board will hold a Public Hearing on February 12, 2024, no earlier than 6:00 
PM in the Donn B. Griffin Room located at Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich for the 
purpose of considering whether to opt out of early Voting by Mail for the Special Town Election 
scheduled for April 9, 2024, as authorized under MGL c. 54, § 25B. Please note, action on this 
topic will not impact early voting by Absentee ballot, which will remain available for all 
qualified voters in all elections. 

All members of the public having an interest in this topic are cordially invited to attend. Remote 
participation is also offered. Please see the posted agenda for dial in information. 

Julie E. Kavanagh, Chair 
Michael D. MacAskill, Vice Chair 
Jeffrey F. Handler 
Donald F. Howell 
__________________________ 
Harwich Select Board 



 

m e m o 
 
TO:  Select Board 
 
FROM: Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2024 
  
RE:  Vote by Mail for April 9, 2024 Special Town Election 
 
 
The VOTES Act state election reform law that passed in July 2022 now requires communities to offer 
early Voting by Mail in all state and federal elections, and considers Vote by Mail the default in local 
elections unless the Select Board opts out via public roll call vote following a public hearing. Your 
February 12, 2024 meeting provides you the opportunity to consider opting out of Vote by Mail for the 
Special Town Election to be held on April 9, 2024 to fill the vacant Select Board seat.  
 
For the reasons I will describe in much greater detail below, I am recommending that you vote to opt out 
of Vote by Mail for the Special Town Election. 
 
Absentee Voting vs. Vote by Mail 
 
Absentee voting is enshrined in the state constitution and allows voters who meet certain qualifying 
criteria to cast their ballot by mail in all elections (local, state, and federal). To qualify to vote Absentee, 
a voter must meet one of the following criteria: 

• Absent from Town on Election Day, 
• Physical disability that prevents them from voting at their polling location, or 
• Unable to vote at their polling location due to religious beliefs. 

When signing an absentee ballot application, the voter signs under the pains and penalties of perjury that 
at least one of the above criteria applies to them. They do not need to identify which criterion applies 
and staff do not investigate eligibility.  
 
Your potential action to opt out of Vote by Mail has no impact on Absentee voting; it will remain 
available for all qualified voters in all elections. 
 
Early Voting by Mail is often described as “no excuse” absentee voting. Essentially, it allows any voter 
to cast their ballot by mail without meeting the qualifying criteria associated with voting Absentee. It 
was first allowed in Massachusetts in July 2020 and was established in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. It was authorized specifically for the 2020 State Primary in September and Presidential 
Election in November. The VOTES Act legislation made early “no excuse” Vote by Mail permanent in 
Massachusetts and was enacted in time for the 2022 State Primary in September and State Election in  
 
 

Town of Harwich 
TOWN CLERK’S OFFICE 

Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 
Harwich Town Hall  •  732 Main Street  •  Harwich, MA 02645 

Tel:  508-430-7516  •  Fax: 508-430-7517 



 
November. This law was in place for our 2023 Annual Town Election, and the Select Board did not take 
any action to opt out. 
 
Importantly, the VOTES Act also now requires the MA Secretary of the Commonwealth’s Office to 
mail Vote by Mail application postcards to all registered voters no later than 45 days before each state 
and federal election. The post card applications associated with the March 5, 2024 Presidential Primary 
Election reached registered voters beginning in mid-January. I’ve provided photos of what those 
applications look like, though you are likely familiar from receiving them in your own mailbox.  
 
You’ll note that these applications allow voters to select which 2024 elections they would like to receive 
Vote by Mail ballots for, and they include four options:  

• All 2024 Elections 
• Presidential Primary (March 5) 
• State Primary (September 3) 
• Presidential Election (November 5) 

The postcard applications make no reference at all to local elections. However, because the default 
under the law is that Towns offer Vote by Mail for their local elections, any voter who checks the “All 
2024 Elections” option is considered to have requested ballots for any local elections in 2024. 
 
To date, we have processed 1,613 Vote by Mail applications where the “All Elections” option was 
selected. All 1,613 of those “All Elections” applications have been noted as requests for Vote by Mail 
ballots for the April 9 Special Town Election. Of those, 1,503 were submitted via the postcard 
application and 110 were submitted through the Secretary of the Commonwealth’s online application 
portal. We have received only 1 Vote by Mail application where the Special Town Election was 
specifically checked off. We anticipate receiving hundreds more applications with “All Election” 
selected prior to the March 5 Presidential Primary.  
 
For comparison, in our 2023 Annual Town Election, where no excuse Vote by Mail was offered, but no 
state-initiated postcard application was mailed to voters, 75 voters submitted a Vote by Mail application 
and 57 voters cast their ballot early by mail. Note: these numbers relate only to early Vote by Mail; other 
voters voted via the Absentee ballot process. 
 
Cost 
 
Processing Vote by Mail requests and ballots is a cost both in dollars and in staff and election worker 
time. The following is a rough cost breakdown for Vote by Mail expenses for the April 9 Special Town 
Election, factoring in the application volume we’re processing specifically from the state postcards: 
 
Ballot Printing 
(because we’d be mailing a number of ballots that approximates our ordinary 
total turnout for local elections, we would have to increase the number of 
local election ballots ordered) 

 
 

$1,500 

Postage (approx. $0.92 per mailed ballot kit) $1,800 
Miscellaneous Office Supplies (mailing labels, envelope sealer) $500 
Election Worker Wages (150-200 hours total) $2,400 - $3,200 
Town Clerk’s Office Staff Overtime (15 hours) $600 

Total: $6,800 - $7,600 
 
 
 
 



 
 
A fraction of these costs were included in the initial special election cost estimate I provided to you in 
the Fall. At that point, we did not know what the state postcards would look like (e.g. if they would 
make reference to local elections so that voters could make a more informed decision when completing 
the application) or what the response rate would look like. As we are now processing the cards, we have 
updated real-time data that indicates the Vote by Mail costs would be higher than anticipated. 
 
Beyond monetary cost, processing Vote by Mail ballots has a meaningful opportunity cost in terms of 
Town Clerk’s Office staff time. The actual ballot kits must be put together – a series of three envelopes, 
the ballot, and Vote by Mail instructions, and four labels per individual ballot kit must be printed and 
affixed. All mailed ballots are separately manually tracked by staff upon 1. Application receipt, 2. Ballot 
mailing, 3. Ballot receipt, and 4. Ballot processing.  Generally speaking, a mailed ballot requires 
exponentially more staff time than a ballot cast in person on Election Day.  
 
During the 3-4 weeks prior to an Election that involves mailed early ballots, Town Clerk’s Office staff 
spend a significant majority of business hours, and often times overtime hours, focused solely on 
processing Vote by Mail ballots. This impacts other core services including processing and issuing Vital 
records, taking marriage intentions, issuing business certificates, responding to records requests, etc. – 
all things that can be time-sensitive and where a delay can meaningfully negatively impact our residents. 
 
I strongly support the changes in elections laws that expand voter access and participation. In many 
ways, the permanent codification of no excuse Vote by Mail has supported that goal for Massachusetts 
residents broadly and Harwich residents specifically. The staff and election worker time and the dollar 
cost involved in this process are absolutely worth it when voters are given the tools and information they 
need to apply for Vote by Mail ballots and to accurately return them. For the state elections where this 
law has been in place, we’ve seen a very high return ratio when comparing Vote by Mail applications to 
returned mailed ballots. 
 
I remain concerned that, specifically with the state postcard applications that make no reference to local 
elections, voters have not been given the tools and information to know the impact of submitting an 
application on voting in local elections. As the numbers mentioned above show, only 1 Harwich voter 
has specifically requested a Vote by Mail ballot for the Special Town Election. During the 2023 Annual 
Town Election when all laws were the same but no state postcard was mailed prior to Election Day, 57 
Harwich voters chose this voting method. 
 
In light of the above, I am recommending that the Board strongly consider opting out of Vote by Mail 
for the Special Town Election on April 9, 2024. If I can provide any additional information in support of 
your deliberations or in support of our voters, I am happy to do so any time. 
 
Thank you. 
 
  



 
 
 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 
Vote by Mail Application Postcards – pre-Presidential Primary Election 

 
 

 
 

 



LEGAL NOTICE 
TOWN OF HARWICH 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
JANUARY 29, 2024 

The Harwich Select Board will hold a Public Hearing to solicit public comment on proposed golf 
fees for 2024 at Cranberry Valley Golf Course. The Hearing will be held on Monday, January 29, 
2024, in the Griffin Room at Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, no earlier than 6:00 P.M. 
Remote participation is also available, please see posted agenda for dial in information.

Julie E. Kavanagh, Chair 
Michael D. MacAskill, Vice-Chair 
Jeffrey Handler, Clerk 
Donald F. Howell 

Cape Cod Chronicle 
January 11, 2024 





Cranberry Valley Golf Course 

Harwich, MA 

Memo
To: Select Board 

From: Roman Greer, Director of Golf 

cc: Joseph Powers, Town Administrator 

Date: 12/20/2023 

Re: 2024 Rates & Fee Recommendation 

Dear Madame Chair and Members of the Board, 

Please find the Golf Department recommendation for 2024 Rates & Fees at Cranberry Valley.  I 
have advertised a legal public hearing at the January 8, 2024 Select Board meeting to solicit 
public feedback.   

Please find the public hearing notice, the recommendation, the proposed 2024 rate sheet and 
competitive market comparison, and historical data attached for you and the public’s benefit.   

I look forward to our discussion on January 8th.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Roman Greer, PGA 
Director of Golf 
Town of Harwich 



Golf Department Rates & Fees Recommendation 2024 

Goals: 

o Increase general fund revenues to offset requested budget increases for FY25.  

Requested increases are primarily due to personnel cost increases (the result of 

collective bargaining contracts). 

o Continue accumulating funds in Golf Improvement Fund (GIF) in anticipation of a 

major Irrigation system upgrade scheduled in FY25.  The golf department is 

budgeting to pay 100% of the costs for this upgrade out of the GIF. 

o Continue to prioritize Harwich residents by offering a Harwich resident daily 

greens fee.  This will present a discounted “pay-as-you-go” option for residents 

who may not play enough rounds to make the Annual Pass a value.  

o Continue raising the rate on Non-Resident Annual Pass to a fair market value.   

Recommendation: 

Annual Pass –  Increase Harwich Resident Adult category by $50 (retaining $25 in Golf 

Improvement Fund (GIF)  

Increase Non-Resident Adult Annual Pass category by $100 (retaining $25 in GIF)  

Greens Fees and Cart Fees – Introduction of Harwich Resident Greens Fee rate of $50 

Rationale: 

Golf Department rates have followed a model of “every other year” alternating raising 

annual passes and greens fees/cart fees for the past 8 years.  This model has worked well as it 

does not put undue recurring pressure on any one segment of our customer base.  Last year 

greens fees and cart fees were increased.  This year I recommend looking primarily to Annual 

Passes to generate additional general fund revenue and project funding needs.   

Anticipating a modest increase to FY25 budget request, primarily to address salary and 

wage obligations, the rate & fee recommendation for 2024 will generate additional general 

fund revenue to offset budget increases while also feeding additional funds into the Golf 

Improvement Fund so that the Golf Department can pay for the scheduled FY25 Irrigation 

Upgrade in full.   

  As an additional benefit to Harwich Residents, a Harwich Resident greens fee is 

recommended.  This recommended new fee recognizes the support local tax paying residents 

have provided the golf course, by offering Harwich Residents a discounted daily fee to play the 

golf course, as an option to purchasing the Annual Pass.  Nationally, this is the most common 



fee arrangement at a municipal golf course, offering a resident rate and a non-resident rate 

daily.  Currently, a Harwich Resident who chooses not to purchase the annual pass pays the 

same daily rate as a non-resident.   The Harwich Resident daily greens fee of $50 was 

determined using the Golf Department’s “cost per round”.  Using general trends of 40,000 

rounds played annually divided into a $2 million operating budget, the Golf Department “cost 

per round” is $50.    This also represents a fair market minimum rate. 

Golf Department general fund revenues hit another high-water mark in FY23 of over 

$2.26 million.  The golf department retired the last of its “old debt” in FY22 (2006 Golf Course 

Renovation), leaving the golf department with only 1 current debt service (Golf 

Infrastructure/Cart Barn Project) which it continues to fund 100% of the obligation out of the 

Golf Infrastructure Revolving Fund.   The rates & fee recommendation presented will see the 

golf department fund its direct budgetary expenses, all current and future projects and debt 

(including the scheduled FY25 Irrigation System Upgrade) and indirect employee costs such as 

life insurance, health insurance and Medicare.    

Competitive market research among other Cape municipal facilities finds Cranberry 

Valley remaining appropriately placed in the marketplace with among the highest daily greens 

fees and the lowest cost for resident annual pass.  Cart and range fees remain competitive as 

well.  Please see attached market research for details. 

Potential Financial Impact:  

Annual Pass: Adult Harwich Residents = 839 x $50 increase= $20,975 to General Fund 

and $20,975 to Golf Improvement Fund* 

Annual Pass: Adult Non-Residents = 312 x $100 = $23,400 to General Fund and $7,800 to 

Golf Improvement Fund* 

Harwich Resident Daily Fee – Difficult to predict the financial impact but I expect a 

positive overall financial impact, as any amount of Harwich Residents who choose the 

“play-as-you-go” option over the Annual Pass will negatively affect Annual Pass 

revenues but will positively affect the greens fees.  If there is a significant number of 

residents who choose this option, the tee-time distribution can be altered between 

Annual Pass Holders and Public Play (which would include Harwich daily fee players) to 

keep an appropriate ratio and not negatively impact revenues.       

Total potential revenue impact –  General Fund =$44,375 

Golf Improvement Fund = $28,775 

Respectfully submitted, 

Roman Greer, PGA 

Director of Golf



Cranberry Valley Rates & Fees - Proposed for 2024 

GREEN FEES:  
Monday –Thursday  
March 18th – May 23rd $50 (+1) 
May 28th – Aug 29th  $85 
Sept 2nd – Sept 26th  $65 

Sept 30th – Dec 12th  $50 (+1) 

Friday, Saturday, Sunday & Holidays  
March 15th - April 7th $50 (+1)  

April 12th -May 5th  $65 
May 10th – Oct 14th  $85 
Oct 18th – October 27th  $65 
Nov 1st – Dec 15th  $50 (+1)

Shoulder Season Weekday (M-Th) Hotel Rate:  $65 (includes cart)   Before Memorial Day and after Labor Day 

MISCELLANEOUS FEES:  
Harwich Resident Rate $50 (new) 
Mid-Day Rate (Mon-Thurs, 1:00PM – Twilight)  $60  

Mid- Day Rate (Fri-Sun, 1:00PM – Twilight)  $70  
Twilight Rate (After 3:30PM) (Oct. after 2:30)  $35  
Twilight Rate (After 4:00PM June, July, August)  $35 
Junior Back 9 (First hour of play) and Twilight  $15 
Back 9 (First hour of play)   $40 
9 Hole Rate (Sunday – Thursday after 1:00PM)  $40 (based on availability)  

Replay Rate  $40 
Temporary Green Fee  $25  
Active Military Discount  25% off Green Fees  
Golf Cart 18 Hole (per person)  $25 
Golf Cart 9 Hole (per person)  $14  

Pass Holder Golf Cart 18 Hole (per person) $23  
Pass Holder Golf Cart 9 Hole (per person) $12  
Walking Push Cart 18 Hole   $8  
Walking Push Cart 9 Hole   $5 

Range Ball Bucket   $5 small / $8 large 
Bulk Range Purchases: 

10 large ($80 value) $60 (25% discount) 
20 large ($160 value) $100 (37.5% discount) 
40 large ($320 value) $160 (50% discount) 

ANNUAL PASS 
Adult Harwich Resident $910  (+50) 
Adult Non-Resident  $1260  (+100)
Young Adult Harwich Resident (age 19-30 as of May 1st)  $610  (+50)
Harwich Collegiate (19-24 as of May 1st requiring student ID) $300 
Junior Harwich/Chatham Resident (age 7-18 as of May 1st)  $150 
Junior Non Resident (age 7-18 as of May 1st)  $350 
GHIN Handicap Service $55 

1/3rd discount off annual pass is offered to those with a military service related disability of at least 51%.  A letter from the VA must be 
presented to verify qualification for the discount.



2024 Rates & Fees

Market Comparisson

Annual Pass CV CV Proposed Captains Dennis Yarmouth Barnstable

Resident 860$            910$            $1,300* $960* $1,320* 1,235$       

Non-Resident 1,160$         1,260$        $2,160* $1,430* $1,320* 1,640$       

Young Adult 560$            560$            n/a 695/875 830$         695$          

Collegiate 300$            300$            450/650 315/370 340$         300$          

Junior 150/300 150/300 204/292 185/260 115$         150$          

Greens Fees CV CV Proposed Captains Dennis Yarmouth Barnstable

Weekday

March 22-May 27 49$              50$              52/62* $47* $45* 45/50

May 31-Sept 1 79$              85$              79/84* $72* $69* 77$            

Sept 6-Sept 29 65$              65$              62* $57* $69* 52$            

Oct 3-Dec 15 49$              50$              52/47* $47* $45* 45$            

Weekend

March-April 9 49$              50$              47/62* $57* $50* 40$            

April 14-May 7 65$              65$              62/79* $57* $50* 45/60

May 12-Oct 10 79$              85$              $84* $72* $85* 77$            

Oct 15-Oct 30 65$              65$              $62* $57* $50* 45$            

Nov 4-Dec 19 49$              50$              47* $37* $50* 40$            

Misc Rates

Mid-Day (Mon-Thr) 59$              60$              $57* $60* $55* 52$            

Mid-Day (Fri-Sun) 69$              70$              $57* $60* $65* 77$            

Twilight 35$              35$              $37* $31* $35* 35$            

Golf Cart 18 24$              25$              $25* $22* $25* 22$            

Golf Cart 9 14$              14$              $15* $16* $16* 12$            

Pass Holder Cart 18 22$              23$              $20* $16* $25*

Pass Holder Cart 9 12$              12$              $11* $11* $16*

*2024 proposed rates for other towns, not yet confirmed



Annual Pass Sales

Harwich Chatham E/O Non ResidentJunior Young AdultCollegiate Total

FY16 823 119 36 19 99 NA NA 1096

FY17 756 152 27 16 102 23 NA 1076

FY18 800 164 41 23 98 47 NA 1173

FY19 763 185 41 19 81 60 NA 1149

FY20 693 203 35 22 57 71 38 1119

FY21 756 228 41 38 66 62 46 1237

FY22 809 232 52 43 64 60 56 1316

FY23 829 NA NA 312 77 62 53 1333



Cranberry Valley Rates
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Proposed

Memberships
Adult Resident $770 $770 $790 790$    $810 810$          860$          860$         910$              

Chatham $770 $770 $790 790$    $835 910$          1,060$       1,160$      na

Eastham & Orleans $870 $870 $890 890$    $910 910$          1,060$       1,160$      na

Non-Resident $1,070 $1,070 $1,090 1,090$ $1,110 1,110$       1,160$       1,160$      1,260$           

Jr Resident 1 (9-17) $125 $125 $125 125$    $125 125$          125$          125$         125$              

Jr Resident 2 (18-21) $150 $150 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Collegiate (FT<25) NA NA NA NA 250 250$          250$          250$         250$              

Young Adult (22-30) NA $470 $490 490$    $510 510$          560$          560$         560$              

Jr Non Resident $350 $350 $350 350$    $350 350$          350$          350$         350$              

Golf Improvement $75 $75 $75 75$       $95 95$            115$          115$         140$              

Infrastructure Fund NA NA 20$     20$       $20 20$            20$            20$           20$                

Green Fees
Monday-Thursday

3/2-May (before Mem Day) $42 $42 $44 44$       44$          49$            49$            49$           50$                

May (Mday)-Sept (Lday) $69 $69 $74 74$       74$          79$            79$            85$           85$                

Sept (LDay)-Dec 19 $42 $42 $44 44$       44$          49$            49$            65/49 65/50

Fri-Sat-Sun-Holiday

3/1-April 23 $58 $58 $60 60$       60$          65$            65$            49/65 50/65

April 31-Oct (Cday) $72 $72 $74 74$       74$          79$            79$            85$           85$                

Oct (Cday)-Nov 1 $58 $58 $60 60$       60$          65$            65$            65$           65$                

Nov 6-Dec 13 $42 $42 $44 44$       44$          49$            49$            49$           50$                

Mid Day (1-2:30) NA NA na na na na na na na

Mid Day 1-3 M-Th $52 $52 $54 54$       54$          59$            59$            60$           60$                

Mid Day 1-3 F-Su $62 $62 $64 64$       64$          69$            69$            70$           70$                

Junior Twilight NA $15 $15 15$       15$          15$            15$            15$           15$                

9 HOLE RATE - SUN-THUR <1:00 NA $36 $38 38$       38$          40$            40$            40$           40$                



Twilight (after 2:30) $32 $32 $32 32$       32$          35$            35$            35$           35$                

Late Twilight (after 4:30)NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

Back 9 w/member $36 $36 $36 36$       36$          40$            40$            40$           40$                

Temp Green $22 $22 $22 22$       22$          25$            25$            25$           25$                

18 Hole Cart $21 $21 $21 22$       22$          24$            24$            25$           25$                

9 Hole Cart $11 $11 $11 12$       12$          14$            14$            14$           14$                

Mem 18 Hole Cart $19 $19 $19 20$       20$          22$            22$            23$           23$                

Mem 9 Hole Cart $10 $10 $10 11$       11$          13$            13$            13$           13$                

Lg Bucket $8 $8 $8 8$         8$            8$               8$               8$             8$                   

Sm Bucket $5 $5 $5 5$         5$            5$               5$               5$             5$                   

Non-Mem Range Pass $250 $250 $250 250$    250$       300$          350$          NA NA

Member Range Pass NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA



Rounds at CV

March April May June July August SeptemberOctober November December Total

2015 141 2195 5170 5687 7820 7628 5370 3517 1733 728 39989

2016 366 2132 4042 6422 8542 7806 5225 3039 1728 346 39648

2017 111 2107 3886 6058 8306 7930 5541 3828 1916 231 39914

2018 4 1632 4498 6101 8670 8171 5730 3778 1070 190 39844

2019 209 1657 4784 6549 6001 7474 5994 3647 1202 75 37592

2020 10 0 2341 6762 9407 8396 7239 4959 2946 928 42988

2021 1251 2987 5326 7378 8255 8244 5883 4347 2245 498 46414

2022 355 2988 5206 6772 9059 8060 6213 3832 1860 303 44648

2023 531 2972 5687 6491 8931 7903 5619 4417 1453 197 44201

avg 330.88889 2074.4444 4548.8889 6468.8889 8332.3333 7956.8889 5868.2222 3929.3333 1794.7778 388.44444 41693.11



The importance of small 
business to Cape Cod + 
the local economy
AMANDA CONVERSE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR + CO-FOUNDER, LOVE LIVE LOCAL INC



Love Live Local is a non-profit 
organization dedicated to 
strengthening Cape Cod's local 
economy by promoting the 
importance of supporting small 
businesses and fostering a 
thriving community. 

Through education, advocacy, 
and direct support, we strive to 
inspire residents and visitors 
alike to invest in our unique 
local businesses and contribute 
to the sustainable growth of our 
region.



Small local 
businesses

•Provide a huge part of a local 
community’s tax revenue 

•Provide jobs

•Support local nonprofits

•Keep communities unique

•Keep money in the community



Impacts of buying local
• When dollars are spent locally, they can in turn be 

re-spent locally, raising the overall level of 
economic activity, paying more salaries, and 
building the local tax base. 

• Local businesses keep 1.5-4x as much money in 
the local economy as their national chain 
competitors.

• Locally owned businesses employ more people 
per square foot and per $1 million revenue than 
their corporate competitors. 

• Put into real dollars: a market shift of just 10% from 
chains stores to independent stores would retain 
an additional $112 million in the local economy 
every year.

• Locally owned businesses consistently exceed 
their chain and online competitors recirculating 
and investing their money in the local economy, 
creating more local jobs and wealth.







Impacts of 
corporate 
concentration

•Impedes innovation and 
quality customer service

•Holds down wages

•Leads to a reduction or 
supply and/or an increase 
in prices

•Leaves supply chains 
vulnerable to disruption

•Costs the average 
household $5,000-$50,000 
a year



Racial Wealth Gap
•Massachusetts has the sixth biggest wealth gap by race in 
the US.

•The median net worth of black families in Massachusetts 
was $8 while their white counterparts had a median net 
worth of $247,500.

•If Massachusetts could close the wealth gap in the black 
and Latino communities by increasing ownership, the state 
could grow its economy by $25 billion over 5 years.



Making the shift –
how businesses can be 
supported right now

•Reduce costs of doing business with permits and 
fees or by creating credits and exemptions 
wherever possible.

•Provide access to resources through grants and 
technical assistance, as well as by increasing 
procurement of local goods and services.

•Limit corporate power + concentration through 
things like antitrust legislation, broadband 
expansion, right to repair laws, and establishing a 
public bank.

•Support Main Streets + downtowns with funding 
and things like data collection since this is where 
many of our mom-and-pop shops call home.

•Advocate for equitable access to business 
ownership. 



Love Live Local

lovelivelocal.com

@lovelivelocal

539 South Street, 
Hyannis, MA



NEW BUSINESS 









































































COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
WILLIAM FRANCIS GALVIN 

SECRETARY OF THE COMMONWEALTH 
WARRANT FOR PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARIES 

MARCH 5, 2024 
 
SS. 
 

To either of the Constables of the Town of Harwich, 
 
 GREETINGS: 
 
In the name of the Commonwealth, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of said Town who 
are qualified to vote in elections and Town affairs to vote in the Community Center Gymnasium, 100 Oak 
Street, in said Town on TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2024, for the following purpose: 
 

POLLS WILL BE OPEN AT 7:00 A.M. AND CLOSE AT 8:00 P.M. 
 
To cast their votes in the Presidential Primaries for the candidates of political parties for the following offices: 
 
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE............................................................  FOR THIS COMMONWEALTH 
STATE COMMITTEE MAN   .............................................................. CAPE AND ISLANDS DISTRICT 
STATE COMMITTEE WOMAN  ......................................................... CAPE AND ISLANDS DISTRICT 
TOWN COMMITTEE  ...............................................................................................................  HARWICH 
 
Hereof fail not and make return of this warrant with your doings thereon at the time and place of said voting. 

 
Given under our hands this _______ day of _______________, 2024. 

                                                         (month) 
 

_____________________________________      _____________________________________ 
  Julie E. Kavanagh, Chair                                        Michael D. MacAskill, Vice Chair 

 
 

_____________________________________      _____________________________________ 
              Jeffrey F. Handler, Clerk                                        Donald F. Howell 

 
       
 ___________________________________            

 
Select Board 

Town of Harwich 
  
   
Attest:    ___________________________________            
  Emily Mitchell, Town Clerk 
 

 
_____________________________________      _______________________________, 2024. 

               Constable                                                             (month and day) 
 

Warrant must be posted by February 27, 2024, (at least seven days prior to the March 5, 2024, Presidential 
Preference Primary). 



dfreiner
Rectangle

dfreiner
Rectangle





















CONTRACTS 





































































































































 

 
M e m o r a n d u m 
 
 
To:   Harwich Select Board 
CC:  Joseph F. Powers, Town Administrator 
From:  Cassie Boyd Marsh, Bailey Boyd Associates, Inc. 
Subject: Participation in FY24 Truro Regional CDBG Grant 
Date:  February 6, 2024 
 
The Town of Truro will be submitting a regional Community Development Block Grant requesting 
funds for housing rehabilitation and childcare subsidies. Based upon Harwich homeowner requests 
along with inquiries from Harwich parents, we would like to invite the town to participate once again 
this year.  This is the 34th regional grant that we are submitting to benefit Lower Cape residents. 

 
The Housing Rehabilitation Program: 
 
The Regional Housing Rehab Program will fund 15 households with a 0% interest deferred payment 
forgivable loan, making repairs of up to $70,000 to keep low and moderate-income residents in their 
homes.  Code repairs, weatherization and health and safety violations will be the priority of the 
program, along with handicap accessibility. All applicants are accepted regionally on a first come/first 
served basis, although we have allocated 6 slots for Harwich residents.  

 
The Childcare Subsidy Program: 
 
 This program will provide up to $7,000 per eligible child to subsidize care while parents work, go to 
school or seek employment. The funds go directly to the participating certified childcare provider 
based on the child’s attendance. These funds subsidize the parent’s payments on a sliding scale basis.   
 
The Housing Rehab and Childcare Subsidy programs are also an important economic catalyst as the 
majority of contractors and all of the childcare providers are local. 

 
If the town of Harwich would like to participate in the FY24 joint application, please sign the attached 
EOHLC Joint Authorization Form and email it to Cassie Boyd Marsh (cboyd@baileyboyd.com) by 
March 8, 2024. 
 
As always there is no cost to the town and an enormous benefit to local residents, contractors and 
childcare providers. We’d be glad to answer any questions that you may have. 
 

mailto:cboyd@baileyboyd.com


MASSACHUSETTS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FFY 2024

Community Development Fund 2024 CDF-2024-Truro*-00014

Joint Application Authorization: Harwich

MUNICIPALITY: Harwich

Contact Person:

Name Joseph Powers

Title Town Administrator

Signature of Chief Elected Official

Printed Name of Chief Elected Official

Title of Chief Elected Official

Page 1 of 102/05/2024



 

 

 

TOWN 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 

REPORT 



HARWICH HARBORMASTER DEPARTMENT 
January 2024 Monthly Report

Operations 
 Marine 77 was used to assist the County dredge by towing discharge pipe from Stage Harbor 

in Chatham to Round Cove for the Round Cove entrance channel dredging project. Marine 77 
towed the pipe back to Stage Harbor at the conclusion of the dredging.

 Round Cove channel maintenance dredging completed; 4262 cubic yards of material removed 
and placed on Bay Road public beach and Wequassett barrier beach. 

Administration 

 Mailed out Final Dockage Invoices, Salt Water Mooring Permits, Pond Mooring/User Fees. 
 Submitted changes for Department website page at Harwich-ma.gov 
 Drafted Letter of Recommendation for Jason Holm (Chatham Deputy) to be selected as the 

next Chatham Harbormaster. 
 Prepared and submitted updated harbor facility ADA compliance overview as part of Open 

Space and Recreation Plan subcommittee. 

Maintenance 
 Fabricated a shield to cut down on glare from the spotlight on Marine 77. 

 The Building Department used their bucket lift to remove large VHF whip antennae and 
bracket from the Harbormaster Office building. The bracket was beginning to fail during 
strong winds so the Building Department is working to design and make a stronger bracket.  

 Painted transition plates from the ramps to the docks at Saquatucket Harbor (SAQ) with a 
nonskid paint. 

 Made repairs to the cleats for slip 10 at SAQ. 

 Continued to reorganize and clean the workshop. 

 Routine building and grounds maintenance. 

Meetings

 Attended pre-construction meeting for the Wixon Landing project with Conservation Agent, 
Project Engineer, and Contractor.

 Met with Mark Kelleher at his request to discuss marina slip rates and address questions 
pertaining to the Allen Harbor jetty project.

 Met with TA to discuss proposed rate increases for dredging by Barnstable County.
 Attended Barnstable County Dredge Advisory meeting.
 Attended meeting with TA to discuss Department Budget for FY25.
 Conducted site visit with Conservation Agent and Project Engineer to evaluate completion 

status of Wixon Landing improvement project.



CORRESPONDENCE 



From: Carrie Schoener <cschoener@harwich-ma.gov>
Subject: Health updates
Date: January 31, 2024 at 1:26:01 PM EST
To: "Michael D. MacAskill" <mmacaskill@harwich-ma.gov>
Cc: Sharon Pfleger <sh.pfleger@gmail.com>

Good Afternoon Michael, 

I just wanted to reach out to you as our liaison to provide you with a few updates on some programming 
we have been working on.  

I am exploring the costs to conduct a Public Health needs assessment for the community. I would like to 
know what our residents think our gaps are.  And are these gaps due to lack of programming or lack of 
public outreach?  We have funds left we can spend through the county PHE grant, so the county is 
currently seeking estimates to perform this service.  

The PHE funds are also helping us fund a spring wellness fair, we have teamed up with conservation, 
COA and the 204 cultural center to host a large community health and environmental event.  Our 
wellness fair is going to be on the heels of the tour de trash, a conservation event and will be held at the 
204.  We have a large list of attendees and Kara was able to add some great draws for families such as, 
laser tag and face painting.  The date for this is April 27th , the conservation event will start at 10:00am 
and the wellness fair will be 11:00am-3pm.  

We have received a grant from Cape Cod Municipal Health Group to conduct a spring walking challenge 
there will be more details as we get closer to warmer weather.   

We have implemented an excellence program for our food establishment to show appreciation to our 
establishments that always meet food safety standards and help encourage those that may struggle to 
strive for better performance standards. 

We have enrolled in the FDA food standards program, it is a way for us to self-assess our own 
performance standards and receive support and grant funding for better training where we may have 
weaknesses. 

And lastly, we have secured an intern who is working on finalizing their MPH to assist us with any and all 
of the programs we are looking to undertake, I am awaiting more details from DPH on when they will 
begin.  

I have more in the works but, nothing solid at this time.... I will continue to update you and when we are 
closer to launching our programs as well as, the rest of the Board. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or insight on our upcoming endeavors. 
I am always available by phone or office visit to elaborate on any of our programs. 

Carrie Schoener, R.S., C.H.O.
Health Director
508-430-7509
Town of Harwich



732 Main Street
Harwich, MA 02645


	01 - Agenda - 02.12.2024
	02 - Consent Agenda
	03 - ACO Appointment
	04 - Select Board Meeting Minutes - 02.05.24
	05 - Public Hearings & Presentations
	06 - Memo - Public Hearing -Stormwater Permit Application
	07 -Public Hearing Notice -Opt out of VBM for STE
	08 - Memo to Select Board re Opting Out of Vote by Mail for STE
	09 - Public Hearing - Golf Rates & Fees
	10 - Love Live Local Presentation
	11 - New Business
	12 - FY25 Departmental Operating Budgets
	13 - List of standard & potential Articles - 2024 ATM
	14 - Articles submitted by Citizen Petition
	15 - 2024 Presidential Primary Election Warrant
	16 - 2024 Common Victualler license renewal - Buca's
	17 - Chapter 90 Project Request Intersetion Improvement
	18 - Contracts
	19 - Contract - GHD
	20 - ATM 2023 Article 21
	21 - Contract with Hub Technical Services
	22 - CDBG Grant application
	23 - Town Administrator's Report
	24 - Harbormaster Dept January 2024 Monthly Report
	25 - Correspondence
	26 - Update from Health Director

